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Date: November 5, 2021

To: Cambridge Historical Commission
From: Sarah L. Burks, Preserv ation Planner
Re: D-1597: 4 Buckingham Place (1892)

D-1598: 6 Buckingham Place (1884, moved 1893)
D-1599 : 10 Buckingham St reet (1892)

Application s to d emolish three buildings on the Buckingham Browne & Nichols

(BB&N) lower school campus was received on October 12, 202 1. The school was noti-
fied of initial determination s of significance, and a public hearing w as scheduled for
November 10, 2021
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Location and Neighborhood Context

The three buildings are located on the north side of Buckingham Place at the corner of

Buckingham Street . On the largest of the three lots (224  -27, 11,350 sf) is the original
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Place). The Kelsey house sits on the middle lot (224 -24,5,200 sf) and the Morrison
house is on the far right (224  -36, 4,470 sf). The properties are located ina  Residence
A-2 zoning district . The combined assessed value of the land and building s, according
totheonlineasses sor 6s propert $544300abase, i s

The three buildings are  situated close to Buckingham Place, a short dead -end street
on the east side of Buckingham Street . There are no accessory buildings but there is a
play yard on the west front side of the Markham building.

BB&N has three campuses in Cambridge. The lower sc hool is located here between
Craigie, Buckingham, and Parker streets. The middle school is located on Sparks
Street, and the upper school is at Gerryos
rounds the lower school is made up primarily of single -family hou ses with the excep-
tion of a large apartment building at Craigie Circle and a few smaller apartment

houses on Parker Street. The school recently acquired the house at 5 Buckingham

Place, directly across the street from the Kelsey house. The two houses at 7 Bucking-
ham Place and 4 Buckingham Street are privately owned and not part of the school.
The Percy Bridgman house at 10 Buckingham Place was designated a National His-

toric Landmark in 1975 for its associations with Percy Bridgman, a Nobel prize win-

ning ph ysicist who lived in the home between 1928 -1961. BB&N proposed demolition
of the ellin 1999 but changed its plans following a demolition review hearing with the
Commission. It is not part of the current demolition proposal.

The current proposal is part of a larger master planning process for the school. The
Markham building is proposed to be demolished and reconstructed closer to the cor-

ner of Buckingham Street on a smaller footprint and design resembling the original

1892 school. The other two buildings are proposed for demolition and the replacement
structure would be a grassy play field to replace their current play field which will be

the site of a future multi  -purpose building. Plans have been filed with the applications.
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Aerial view 27 Mrch 021. Nearmap.com accessed 5 Nov. 2021.




Architectural Description s

The Thackray -Kelsey house at 4 Buckingham Place is a 2% -story Queen Anne cot-
tage built in 1892 as a single  -family residence. The house measures 27 x 28 feet. The
roof is steeply pitched and clad in copper. The roof extends down over the entrance
porch, located on the west elevation. Three shallow shed dormers are located on th e
east side and one on the west. A brick chimney is located at the center of the house.

The walls are clad in cedar shingles painted yellow . The second -floor projects about
one foot over the first floor and rests on exposed beams. Underit, a three -sided bay
occupies the left side of the street  -facing elevation. A handicap ramp wraps the build-
ing on the south and west sides. The windows are a m ixture of original and replace-
ment sash but were originally a combination of two -over-two double -hung sash and
diamond pane casements. There have been no additions to the original mass of th is
compact cottage .

4 Bckingham PI, CI—[C hsta photo, Nbveber 2021.

The Carey-Newell -Morrison house was built in 1884 as an artstudio andmovedto a
new brick foundation at 6 Buckingham Place in 1893 where it was converted for resi-
dential use. The chimney was relocated in 1897 and other unspecified interior modifi-

cations were made at that time . The roof is unusual with a gable form on one end and
a hip roof with  intersecting dormer on the other. A two -story addition was constructed

on the north side in 1915 . The walls are clad with cedar shingles and a square bay
protrudes 2% feet on the left of the front elevation. The cornice returns on the gable
ends, but the house does not convey a strong sense of a specific architectural style.

The Markham school building at 10 Buckingham  Street started as a simple rectan-
gular mass of 1% stories with a covered entry porch, low hipped roof , projecting eaves |,
exposed rafter tails and a large combination chimney/belfry. It was designed by An-
drews, Jaques & Co. architects. The building grew and changed organically as the

school grew and educational needs changed. The present day building is an amalgam-

ation of many additions around the central core of the original building.
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West and south elevations of 6 Buckingham PI. CHC staff photo, Nov. 2021.

South and east elevations of 6 Buckingham PI. Two-story addition at right. CHC staff photo, Nov. 2021.



